
Ul\'ITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
REGIONS 

IN THE MATTER OF: 

United Transportation Group, 
Inc. 
1150 E. 145th Street 
East Chicago, Indiana 46312 

Respondent 

) DOCKET NO. CWA-05-2017-0001 
) 
) Consent Agreement and Final Order to 
) Resolve a Proceeding to Assess a Civil 
) Penalty Pursuant to Section 31J~l(g) 

) Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. § '"JL7<><" 

) 

CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER 

1. This administrative action is commenced and concluded under section 309(g) 
Clean Water Act (CW A), 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g), and sections 22.13(b) and 22.18(b) of the 
Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil 
Penalties and the Revocation/Termination or Suspension of Permits found at 40 C.F.R. 
§§ 22.13(b) and 22.18(b). 

2. According to 40 C.F.R. § 22.13(b ), where the parties agree to settle one or more causes of 
action before the filing of a compliant, an administrative action may be commenced and 
concluded simultaneously by the issuance of a Consent Agreement and Final Order · 
(CAFO). 

3. Complainant is, by lawful delegation, the Director of the Water Division, U.S. 
Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5. 

4. Respondent is United Transportation Group, Inc. (Respondent or UTG). Respondent is a 
"person" as that term is defined at section 502(5) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(5). 

5. The parties agree that settling this action without the filing of a compliant or the 
adjudication of any issue of fact or law is in their interest and in the public interest. 

6. Respondent consents to the terms of this CAFO, including the assessment of the civil 
penalty specified below. 

JURISDICTION AND WIVER OF RIGHT TO HEARING 

7. For purposes of this CAFO, Respondent stipulates that EPA has jurisdiction over the 
subject matter of this CAFO and waives any jurisdictional objections it may have. 

8. Respondent waives its right to request a hearing as provided at 40 C.F .R. § 22. I 5( c ), any 
right to contest the allegations in this CAFO, and its right to appeal this CAFO. 
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9. By executing this CAFO, t.'le Respondent does not adinit liability or admit Complaina,_-ifs 
factual allegations set forth in this CAFO. The Respondent's execution of this CAFO 
does not constitute a waiver or admission of any kind, including without limitation a 
waiver of any defense, legal or equitable, which Respondent may have in this or any 
other administrative or judicial proceeding, other than a proceeding to enforce this 
CAFO. 

STATUTORY AND REGULATORY BACKGROUND 

l 0. Section 30l(a) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1311 (a), prohibits the discharge of any pollutant, 
unless the discharge is in compliance with various sections of the CW A, including 
Section 307 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1317. 

1 !. Section 307(b) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1317(b), states "[t]he Administrator shall ... 
publish proposed regulations establishing pretreatment standards for introduction of _ 
pollutants into treatment works ... which are publicly owned for those pollutants which 
are determined not to be susceptible to treatment by such treatment works or which 
would interfere with the operation of such treatment works." 

12. Pursuant to 307(b) of the CW A, 33 U.S.C. § 13 l 7(b), the Adininistrator published 
"General Pretreatment Regulations for Existing and New Sources" on January 28, 1981, 
codified at 40 C.F.R. Part 403. By the terms ofthis regulation, the requirements of Part 
403 became effective three years from the date of promulgation. 

13. Section 307(d) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1317(d), states that "[a]fter the effective date of 
any ... pretreatment standard promulgated under this section, it shall be unlawful for any 
owner or operator of any source to operate any source in violation of any such ... 
pretreatment standard." 

14. Section 309(g) of the CW A, 33 U.S.C. § l319(g), authorizes the Adininistrator to assess 
a Class II civil penalty under Section 309(g)(2)(B) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. 
§ 1319(g)(2)(B), after consultation with the State, when the Administrator finds, on the 
basis of any information available, that a person has violated Section 301 of the CW A, 
33 U.S.C. § 131 !. 

VIOLATIONS 

15. UTG owns and operates a Transportation Equipment Cleaner (TEC) and transloading 
facility located at 1150 East 145th Street, East Chicago, Indiana (the Facility). The 
Facility discharges industrial process wastewater to the City of East Chicago's sanitary 
sewer. 

16. The City of East Chicago (East Chicago), through the East Chicago Sanitary District 
(ECSD), om1s and operates a publicly owned treatment works (POTW) located at 5201 
Indianapolis Boulevard, East Chicago, Indiana. The POTW collects and treats residential, 
commercial, and industrial waste. 
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l 7. 40 C.F.R. § 403 .1 (b)(l) states the General Pretreat.c'Ilent Regulations for Existing and 
New Sonrces of Pollution applies to pollutants from non-domestic sonrces covered by 
Pretreatment Standards which are indirectly discharged into or otherwise introduced into 
POTWs as defined in§ 403.3. 40 C.F.R. § 403.l(b)(4) states that the regulations apply to 
any new or existing sonrce subject to Pretreatment Standards. 

18. 40 C.F.R. § 403 .3( c) defines the term "Approval Authority" to mean the Director in an 
NPDES State with an approved State pretreatment program and the appropriate Regional 
Administrator in a non-NP DES State or NPDES State without an approved State 
pretreatment program. 

19. 40 C.F.R. § 403.3(£)(1) states that the term "Control Authority" refers to the POTW if the 
POTW's Pretreatment Program Submission has been approved by the Approval 
Authority. 

20. U.S. EPA approved ECSD's pretreatment program on February 14, 1986. The 
pretreatment program and regulatory provisions for the pretreatment program are 
incorporated in ECSD's NPDES Permit, No. 1N0022829, under Part III - Requirement to 
Operate a Pretreatment Pro gram. 

2 I. EPA is the "Approval Authority" and ECSD is the "Control Authority" for the Facility as 
these terms are used in this Order and as defined in the General Pretreatment Regulations 
at 40 C.F.R. §§ 403.3(c) and (f). 

22. 40 C.F.R. § 403 .3(i) states that the term "Indirect Discharge" or "Discharge" means the 
introduction of pollutants into a POTW from any non-domestic sonrce regulated under 
section 307(b), (c), or (d) of the CWA. 

23. 40 C.F.R. § 403.3G) defines the term "Industrial User" to mean a sonrce ofindirect 
Discharge. 

24. UTG is an Industrial User subject to the General Pretreatment Regulations at 40 C.F.R. 
§ 403 as these terms are used in this Order and as defined in the General Pretreatment 
Regulations at 40 C.F.R. §§ 403.3(i) and G). 

25. 40 C.F.R. § 403.3(v)(l)(i) states that a Significant Industrial User (SIU) means all 
Industrial Users subject to Categorical Pretreatment Standards under 40 C.F.R. § 403.6 
and the Effiuent Guidelines and Standards for Point Sonrce Categories at 40 C.F.R. 
chapter I, subchapter N. 

26. On August 14, 2000, EPA promulgated the Pretreatment standards for existing sonrces, 
Transportation Equipment Cleaning Point Sonrce Category, Subpart A at 40 C.F.R. 
§ 442.15 and Subpart Bat 40 C.F.R. § 442.25. 65 Fed. Reg. 49700 (August 14, 2000) and 
at 70 Fed. Reg. 5061 (February I, 2005). 

27. 40 C.F.R. Part 442, Subpart A, at§ 442.10, states that the provisions for the 
Transportation Equipment Cleaning Point Sonrce Category, Subpart A for Tank Trucks, 
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are applicable to " ... discharges resulting from the cleaning of tank trucks and intermodal 
tank containers which have been used to transport chemical or petroleum cargos." 

28. The Pretreatment standards for existing sources under 40 C.F.R. § 442. l 5 state that no 
later than August 14, 2003, any existing source subject to this subpart which introduces 
pollutants into a POTW must achieve pretreatment standards for non-polar material, 
copper, and mercury. 

29. 40 C.F.R. Part 442, Subpart B, at§ 442.20, states that the provisions for the 
Transportation Equipment Cleaning Point Source Category, Subpart B for Rail Tank 
Cars, are applicable to " ... discharges resulting from the clea..'1.i.ng of rail tank cars which 
have been used to transport chemical or petroleum cargos'." 

30. The Pretreatment standards for existing sources under 40 C.F.R. § 442.25 state that no 
later than August 14, 2003, any existing source subject to this subpart which introduces 
pollutants into a POTW must achieve pretreatment standards for non°polar material, 
fluoranthene, and phenanthrene. 

31. The Facility began a cleaning operation for rail cars and tank trucks containing chemical 
and/or petroleum products in 1989 and 1990, respectively. 

32. UTG operates a transportation equipment cleaning process, as it is defined at 40 C.F;R. 
§ 442.1, and is an SIU subject to the transportation equipment cleaning effluent 
guidelines for existing sources at 40 C.F.R. Part 442 Subpart A for Tank Trucks at 
§ 442.15, and Subpart B for Rail Tank Cars at§ 442.25. 

33. 40 C.F.R. § 403.5(c)(l) states that each POTW developing a POTW Pretreatment 
Program pursuant to § 403 .8 shall develop and enforce specific limits to implement the 
prohibitions listed in paragraphs (a)(l) and (b) of this section. 40 C.F.R. § 403.5(d) states 
that where specific prohibitions or limits on pollutants or pollutant parameters are 
developed by a POTW in accordance with§ 403.5(c), such limits shall be deemed 
Pretreatment Standards for the purposes of Section 307(d) of the CW A. 

34. On March 12, 2007, the City of East Chicago adopted and passed Ordinance 
No. 07-0007, "Wastewater Discharge Regulations" at Chapter 13.13 of the Municipal 
Code of the City of East Chicago, Indiana which established Specific Pollutant 
Limitations at 13.13.3.02.3 (Local Limits), as required by 40 C.F.R. § 403.5(c)(l), 
including limits for the following parameters: ammonia, copper, lead, oil and grease, 
phenol, and phosphorous. 

35. On June 6, 2011, UTG submitted a permit renewal entitled "Work Sheet & Application 
for Sewer Connection" to ECSD which details its wastewater treatment process. 

36. East Chicago issued a revised and amended industrial wastewater discharge permit for 
Outfall No. 521 (Permit No. 521) on January 24, 2013, allowing UTG to discharge waste 
streams to ECSD's POTW, subject to certain conditions. The Permit No. 521 authorizes 
UTG to discharge Transportation Equipment Cleaning (TEC) and Centralized Waste 
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Treatment (CWT) process wastewater into ECSD's combined sewer system. See 
Attachment A. 

37. On January 29-31 and September 26-27, 2013, EPA conducted on-site compliance 
inspections of the Facility (2013 Inspections). 

38. Based on the information provided by UTG during the 2013 Inspections and as detailed 
below, EPA finds that UTG is in violation of the General Pretreatment Regulations for 
Existing and New Sources of Pollution at 40 C.F.R. Part 403 and the Pretreatment 
standards for existing sources, Transportation Equipment Cleaning Point Source 
Category at 40 C.F.R. Part 442. 

39. 40 C.F.R. § 403.S(a)(l) General Prohibitions state that a User may not introduce into a 
POTW any pollutant(s) which cause Pass Through or Interference. In addition, 40 C.F.R. 
§ 403 .5(b )( 4) Specific Prohibitions state that any pollutant released in a Discharge at a 
flow rate and/or pollutant concentration which will cause Interference with the POTW 
shall not be introduced into a POTW. 

40. 40 C.F.R. § 403.5(b)(6) states that petroleum oil, non-biodegradable cutting oil, or 
products of mineral oil origin in amounts that will cause interference or pass through 
shall not be introduced into a POTW. 

41. During the 2013 Inspections, EPA observed spilled petroleum on the ground, uncovered 
roll-off boxes with discharge pathways from their bases, an oil sheen in standing storm 
water adjacent to a storm drain leading to ECSD's combined sewer system, and general 
poor facility spill control and maintenance. 

42. ECSD reported oil and grease effluent violations on numerous dates, including 
1/31/2010, 1/31/2012, 2/28/2012, and 2/28/2014. UTG's poor containment practices 
introduced oil and grease which caused or contributed to pass through at the POTW on 
numerous dates, in violation of 40 C.F.R. § 403.5(b)(6). 

43. 40 C.F.R. § 403.12(e)(l) states that any IU subject to a categorical Pretreatment Standard, 
shall submit to the Control Authority during the months of June and December, a report 
which indicates the nature and concentration of pollutants in the effluent which are 
limited by such categorical Pretreatment Standards. In addition, this report shall include a 
record of measured or estimated average and maximum daily flows for the reporting 
period for the Discharge reported in paragraph (b)(4) of this section (Flow Measurement) 
except that the Control Authority may require more detailed reporting of flows. 

44. During the 2013 inspections, EPA inspectors observed thatthe Facility's wastewater flow 
meter stopped measuring flow after the wastewater treatment plant pumps had been 
turned off, yet EPA observed a continued wastewater discharge for over an hour after 
those pumps had been turned off, indicating inaccurate reporting of average and 
maximum flow for every reporting period, in violation of 40 C.F.R. § 403.12(e)(l ). 

45. 40 C.F.R. § 403.12(g)(l) states that the reports required in paragraphs (b), (d), (e), and (h) 
of this section shall contain the results of sampling and analysis of the Discharge, 



including the flow and the nature and concentration of pollutants contained therein which 
are limited by the applicable Pretreatment Standards. 

46. 40 C.F.R. § 403.12(g)(2) states that if san1pling performed by an IU indicates a violation, 
the User shall notify the Control Authority within 24 hours of becoming aware of the 
violation. The User shall also repeat the sampling and analysis and submit the results of 
the repeat analysis to the Control Authority within 30 days after becoming aware of the 
violation. 

47. From January 2010 through November 2012, UTG effluent samples indicated the 
following exceedances of local limit parameters: 

Sample Parameter Permit Limit, Reported Limit Type Sample 
Collection Date mg/L Valuei mg/L Collected By 

. 

1/19/2010 Ammonia- 77 135 Daily Max ECSD 
Nitrogen 

1/19/2010 HEM -Oil and 50 536 Daily Max ECSD 
Grease 

3/2/2010 .Ammonia - 77 208 Daily Max ECSD 
Nitrogen 

3/2/2010 HEM- Oil and 50 191 Daily Max ECSD 
Grease 

4/6/2010 Ammonia- 77 282 Daily Max ECSD 
Nitrogen 

. 

4/6/2010 HEM- Oil and 50 51 Daily Max ECSD 
Grease 

9/30/2010 HEM - Oil and 50 152 Daily Max ECSD 
Grease 

9/30/2010 HEM-Oil and 50 250 Daily Max UTG 
Grease 

12/16/2010 Phenol 4-AAP 0.700 l.150 Daily Max ECSD 

1/19/2011 Total 5.50 I 1.10 Daily Max ECSD 
Phosphorus 

I 
1/19/2011 Phenol - 4AAP 0.700 1.170 Daily Max ECSD 

1/19/2011 Total Lead 0.2240 0.2290 Daily Max ECSD 

1/19/2011 I Total Copper 0.1700 
I 

0.2970 Daily Max ECSD 
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I 2/24/2011 HEM-Oil and 50 69 Daily Max UTG ! 

Grease 

3/23/2011 HEM· Oil and 50 56A Daily Max ECSD 
Grease 

! 4/6/2011 HEM-Oil and 50 199.0 Daily Max ECSD 
Grease 

5/26/2011 HEM -Oil and 50 140 Daily Max UTG 
Grease 

7/12/2011 HEM-Oil and 50 170 Daily Max UTG 
Grease 

9/7/2011 HEM· Oil and 50 71 Daily Max UTG 
Grease 

10/26/20ll HEM· Oil and 50 230 Daily Max UTG 
Grease 

12/29/2011 HEM - Oil and 50 80 Daily Max UTG 
Grease 

. 

! 3/29/2012 HEM- Oil and 50 290 Daily Max UTG 

I 
Grease 

4/18/2012 HEM - Oil and 50 99 Daily Max UTG 
Grease 

. 

6/5/2012 HEM-Oil and 50 120 Daily Max UTG 
Grease 

7/10/2012 . HEM- Oil and 50 380 Daily Max UTG 
Grease 

l]/29/2012 HEM· Oil and 50 54 Daily Max UTG 
Grease 

48. For each self-monitored effluent violation identified in the table above, UTG did not 
notify ECSD within 24 hours after becoming aware of the effluent violations, as required 
by, and in violation of, 40 C.F.R. § 403.12 (g)(2). 

49. UTG did not resample within 30 days of becoming aware of effluent exceedances from 
samples collected on 9/30/2010, 2/24/2011, 5/26/2011, 7/12/2011, 9/7/2011, 12/29/201 L 
4/18/2012, 7/10/2012, and 11/29/2012, in violation of40 C.F.R. § 403.12(g)(2). 

50. 40 C.F.R. § 403.12(g)(3) states that the reports required in paragraphs (b ), (d), (e), and (h) 
must be based upon data obtained through appropriate sampling and analysis performed 
during the period covered by the report, which data are representative of conditions 
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occurring during the reporting period. 40 C.F.R. § 403.12(g)(3) further specifies 
requirements for frequency of monitoring and appropriate methods for collecting 
samples, including the use of the protocols specified in 40 CFR part 136 and appropriate 
EPA guidance. 

51. 40 C.F.R. § 403.12(0)(2) states that any IU subject to the reporting requirements 
established in this section shall be required to retain for a minimum of three years any 
records of monitoring activities and results (whether or not such monitoring activities are 
required by this section) and shall make such records available for inspection and 
copying by the Director and the Regional Administrator. 

52. UTG was unable to provide all documentation of wastewater sample analysis for the 
previous three years for all required effluent parameters (including effluent limits 
required by 40 C.F.R. §§ 442.15 and 442.25, and all ECSD local limits) as was requested 
by EPA during the 2013 Inspections and following the inspections, in violation of 
40 C.F.R. §§ 403.12(g)(l) and (o)(2). 

53. 40 C.F.R. § 403.l 7(d) prohibits the intentional diversion ofwastestreams from any 
portion of an IU's treatment facility. 

54. During the January 2013 EPA Inspection, EPA inspectors observed that the wastewater 
treatment system was not operating as it is described in UTG's June 6, 2011 permit 
renewal application, In addition, several wastewater treatment units were not in operation 
and significant portions of the treatment process were not being utilized prior to the 
wastewater discharge. 

55. During at least the January 2013 EPA Inspection, UTG was intentionally diverting 
wastestreams around portions of its wastewater treatment process in violation of 
40 C.F.R. § 403.17(d). 

56. 40 C.F.R. § 403 .12(b) states that at least 90 days prior to commencement of discharge, 
New Sources, and sources that become IUs subsequent to the promulgation of an 
applicable categorical Standard, shall be required to submit to the Control Authority a 
report which contains the information listed in paragraphs (b )(1 )-( 5) of this section -
baseline report. New sources shall also be required to include in this report information 
on the method of pretreatment the source intends to use to meet applicable pretreatment 
standards. 

57. UTG's June 23, 2009, and January 24, 2013, Industrial Wastewater Discharge Permits for 
Outfall No. 521 identify Centralized Waste Treatment (CWT) Point Source Category 
Subpart D third party waste streams which are authorized to be accepted and treated in 
compliance with requirements at 40 C.F.R. § 437.47. 

58. 40 C.F.R. § 437.47(a)(2) states that the discharger will notify its local control authority at 
the time of submitting its application for an individual control mechanism or pretreatment 
agreement of its desire to be subject to Multiple Waste Subcategory by submitting to the 
local control authority a,_, initial certification statement as described in§ 43 7.4 l(a). 
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59. As of the date ofthis Order, UTG has not submitted a baseline report or an initial 
certification statement required by 40 C.F.R. § 437.47(a)(2) to begin operation as a CWT 
under the CWT Categorical Pretreatment Standard at 40 C.F.R. Part 437 in violation of 
40 C.F.R. § 403.12(b). 

60. In a separate Administrative Consent Order under Sections 308(a) and 309(a) of the 
CWA, 33 U.S.C. §§ 1318(a) and 13 l 9(a), Respondent and its assigns have agreed to 
undertake tasks and reporting to ensure compliance with the CW A. 

61. The CW A includes provisions for administrative penalties for violations of the CW A. 
Specifically, EPA may assess civil administrative penalties under 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g) 
and 40 C.F.R. Part 19 of$11,000 per day for each violation that occurred after March 15, 
2004 through January 12, 2009, and $16,000 per day for each violation that occurred 
after January 12, 2009. An Administrative Penalty action may total up to $177,500 for 
actions filed after January 12, 2009 up to December 6, 2013 or up to $187,500 for actions 
filed after December 6, 2013. 

TERMS OF SETTLEMENT 

62. For the purpose of this proceeding and according to 40 C.F.R. § 22.1 S(b) and ( c ), 
Respondent: (a) admits that EPA has jurisdiction over the subject matter set forth in this 
consent agreement; (b) neither admits nor denies the facts stipulated in this consent 
agreement; and (c) consents to the terms of this CAFO. 

63. Based upon the penalty factors set forth in Section 309(g) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. 
§ 1319(g), EPA and Respondent agree to settle this action for $1,000. 

64. This CAFO settles the civil violations alleged in paragraphs 15 through 59 of this CAFO. 

65. Upon execution of the final order attached hereto, Respondent waives all rights to request 
a judicial or administrative hearing on any issue of law or fact set forth in this consent 
agreement, including, but not limited to, its right to request a hearing under Section 
309(g)(2)(B) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g)(2)(B), and its right to appellate review of 
the attached final order found at Section 309(g)(8)(B) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. 
§ 1319(g)(8)(B). 

66. Respondent agrees to pay the $1,000 civil penalty for the alleged violations by mailing a 
certified or cashier's check made payable to "Treasurer, United States of America" to the 
following address: 

[for checks sent by regular U.S. Postal Service mail] 

U. S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Fines and Penalties 
Cincinnati Finance Center 
P.O. Box 979077 
St. Louis, MO 63197-9000 
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[for checks sent by express mail] 

U.S. Bank 
Government Lockbox 979077 
U.S. EPA Fines and Penalties 
1005 Convention Plaza 
Mail Station SL-MO-C2GL 
St. Louis, MO 63101 

67. Payment of the civil penalty is due within thirty (30) calendar days from the effective 
date of this CAPO, which is the date that the CAPO is filed with the Regional Hearing 
Clerk. 

68. A transmittal letter, stating Respondent's name, the case title, Respondent's complete 
address, and the case docket number must accompany the payment. 

69. The check must note the case caption and the docket number of this CAPO. 

70. When Respondent pays the civil penalty in accordance with Paragraph 66 above, 
Respondent shall simultaneously and separately send notice of such payment, including a 
copy ofthe check and transmittal letter, to each of the following three parties at the 
address indicated: 

Regional Hearing Clerk 
Planning and Management Division (19 .T) 
U.S. EPA Region 5 
77 West Jackson Boulevard 
Chicago, Illinois 60604 

and 

Kathleen Schnieders 
Office of Regional Counsel (C-14.T) 
US. EPA Region 5 
77 West Jackson Boulevard 
Chicago, Illinois 60604 

and 

Michelle Heger 
Water Enforcement and Compliance Assurance Branch (WC-15 J) 
US. EPA Region 5 
77 West Jackson Boulevard 
Chicago, Illinois 60604 

71. This civil penalty is not deductible for federal tax purposes. 
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72. Respondent's failure to pay the assessed civil penalty in accordance with the provisions 
ofthis CAFO will result in the referral of this matter to the United States Department of 
Justice for collection in accordance with Section 309(g)(9) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. 
§ 1319(g)(9). In such an action, the validity, amount, and appropriateness of such penalty 
shall not be subject to.review. In addition to any unpaid balance and interest on this 
penalty, Respondent shall also be required to pay attorney's fees and costs for collection 
proceedings and a quarterly nonpayment penalty. Tiris nonpayment penalty shall be in an 
amount equal to 20% of the aggregate amount of Respondents' penalties and nonpayment 
penalties which are unpaid as of the beginning of each such quarter. 

73. Interest shall accrue on any amount overdue under the terms of this CAFO at an annual 
rate calculated in accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 13.11. 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

74. This CAPO resolves Respondent's liability and assigns federal civil penalties for the 
violations and facts alleged in this CAFO. 

7 5. This CAPO does not affect the right of EPA or the United States to pursue appropriate 
injunctive relief or other equitable relief or criminal sanctions for any violations of law. 
EPA reserves all rights and remedies, legal and equitable, available to address any 
violation cited in this Order, any other violation of the CW A, and to enforce this Order. 
Neither issuance of this Order by EPA nor compliance with its terms precludes further 
enforcement action pursuant to Section 309 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319, for the 
violations cited herein, for any other violations of the CW A committed by Respondent, or 
to enforce this Order. 

76. This CAFO does not affect Respondent's responsibility and duty to comply with the 
CW A, or other federal, state, or local laws or regulations. 

77. The terms of this CAFO bind both parties, their officers, directors, employees, 
successors, and assigns to this action. The representative of each party signing this 
consent agreement certifies that he or she has authority to enter into the terms of this 
consent agreement and bind that party to it. Respondent shall give notice and a copy of 
this CAPO to any successor in interest prior to any transfer of ownership or operational 
control of the Facility. 

78. Each party agrees to bear its own costs and fees accrued in the course of this action. 

79. The effective date of this CAPO is the date that the Final Order signed by the Acting 
Regional Administrator or his designated representative is filed with the Regional 
Hearing Clerk. This CAPO is subject to the public notice requirements of Section 
309(g)(4)(C) of the CW A, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g)( 4)(C). 

80. Complainant is providing public notice of and reasonable opportunity to comment on the 
proposed issuance of the CAPO according to section 309(g)(4) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. 
§ 1319(g)(4). 
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In the Matter of: United Transportation Group. Inc. Respondent. 
East Chicago, Indiana 

Docket Number: CWA-05-2017-0001 

For Respondent: 

United Transportation Group, Inc. 

sportation Group, Inc. 
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In the Matter of: United Transportation Group, Inc., Respondent. 
East Chicago, Indiana 

Docket Number: cw A-05-2017-0001 

For Complainant: 

United States EnvirolllI1ental Protection Agency 
Region 5 

L~,.7~£af~:.· t<c-·A(:il ~ J[ =7 
V Tinka . Hyde 
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Director, Water Division 
United States EnvirolllI1ental Protection Agency 
Region 5 



In the Matter of: United Transportation Group, Inc., Respondent. 
East Chicago, Indiana 

Docket Number: CW A-05-2017-0001 

FINAL ORDER 

This Consent Agreement and Final Order, as agreed to by the parties, shall become effective 

immediately upon filing of this Order with the Regional Hearing Clerk. This Final Order 

concludes this proceeding pursuant to 40 C.F.R. §§ 22.18 and 22.31. 

IT IS SO ORDERED 

Date: _____________ _ By: ___________ _ 
AnnL. Coyle 
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Regional Judicial Officer 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Region 5 



In the matter of: United Transpmiation Group, Inc., Respondent 

Docket Number: CW A-05-2017-0001 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I certify that I served a true and correct copy of the foregoing Consent Agreement and Final 
Order, which was filed on , in the following manner to the addressees: 

Copy by Certified Mail to 
Respondent, Return-receipt: 

Copy by Certified Mail to 
Attorney for Respondent, 
Return-receipt: 

Copy by E-mail to 
Attorney for Complainant: 

Copy by E-mail to 
Regional Judicial Officer: 

Dated: 

Michael Pellin 
United Transportation Group, Inc. 
1150 East 145111 Street 
East Chicago, Indiana 46312 

Michael T. Scanlon 
Barnes & Thornburg, LLP 
11 South Meridian Street 
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204-3535 

Kathleen Schnieders 
schnieders.kathleen@epa.gov 

Ann Coyle 
covle.a1m(tilepa.gov 

· LaDawn Whitehead 
Regional Hearing Clerk 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5 

CERTIFIED MAIL RECEIPTNUMBER(S): ____________ _ 


